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AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
AIG Insurance Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiary (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Principal activities

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The principal activity of the Group
during the year was underwriting general insurance business in Hong Kong and Macau.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 9.

The directors declared and paid an interim dividend of HKD5.83 per share (2023: nil) and
recommended a final dividend of HKD27.12 per share after reporting date (2023: nil). Details of
the dividends for the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 10 to 11 of the consolidated financial statements.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HKD208,000
(2023: HKD60,000).

Shares issued in the year

Details of the shares in issue in the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.



AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. CHAN Shing Chuen (independent non-executive director) (resigned on 29 May 2024)
Ms. YIP Yok Tak Amy (independent non-executive director)

Mr. Roger David STEEL (independent non-executive director) (appointed on 1 May 2024)
Ms. POON Suk Fong Louisa

Mr. Stephen John WARD (resigned on 31 May 2024)

Ms. SZE Lai Kuen

Ms. SUN Liqin L

All existing directors were not subject to retirement from office in accordance with Articles 21 and
22 of the Company's Articles of Association, they would continue to be in office.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangement and contracts that are significant
in relation to the Company’s business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party
and in which a director of the Group had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. ‘

Directors’ interests in equity or debt securities

Under the stock award plans of AlG, a certain number of shares of AIG common stock may be
granted to officers and other key employees of AIG and its subsidiaries at prices not less than the
fair market value at date of grant.

Management contracts

There exist agreements for management and administration services, in respect of which the
Group provides services to various related companies and under which costs are reimbursed and
fees are payable.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director or former director may be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability incurred by the director to a person
other than the Company or an associated company of the Company in connection with any
negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the Company or associated
company (as the case may be).
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Director 7 \—é_\

SZE Lai Kuen
25 April 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Member of AIG Insurance Hong Kong Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of AIG Insurance Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiary (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 8 to 76, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the vear then ended,;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion,

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional

Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. ‘

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong SAR, China
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Member of AIG Insurance Hong Kong Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (Continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Report of the Directors, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Member of AIG Insurance Hong Kong Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Member of AIG Insurance Hong Kong Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 April 2025



AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023
HKD HKD
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 3,670,933 9,909,628
Right-of-use assets 6 14,316,120 38,246,981
Intangible assets 7 9,943,403 11,001,324
Club debentures 9 25,959,000 28,917,000
Reinsurance contract assets 13 2,149,507,693 1,601,344,023
Current income tax asset - 5,156,755
Intercompany balance receivables 23 14,122,216 13,469,128
Prepayments and other receivables 10 25,002,465 25,922 075
Cash and bank balances 11 3,730,776,744 4,356,719,631
Total assets 5,973,298,574 6,090,686,545
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to
the equity holders
Share capital 12 1,246,318,848 1,246,318,848
Other reserves 14,978,783 18,650,069
Reserve on post-retirement
obligation 15,784,568 228,694
Retained earnings 796,142,435 663,918,751
Total equity 2,073,224,634 1,929,116,362
LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities 8 98,831 1,293,464
Post-retirement obligation 22 71,835,924 86,172,857
Lease liabilities 6 13,918,855 40,144,277
Insurance contract liabilities 13 3,710,425,030 3,928,830,744
Current income tax liabilities 27,786,947 3,596,673
Intercompany balance payables 23 14,978,096 36,482,733
Other payables 14 61,030,257 65,049,435

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

3,900,073,940

4,161,570,183

5,973,298,574

6,090,686,545

The consolidated financial statements on pages 8 to 12 were approved by the Board of Directors
and were signed on the Company’s behalf on 25 April 2025.

................. 7“&

Directo Dire
SZE Lai Kuen POON Suk Fong Louisa

The notes on pages 13 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-8-



AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

[nsurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held

Insurance service result

Interest revenue using the effective interest
method
Expenses on funds withheld

Net investment income

Net insurance finance expenses from insurance
contracts issued

Insurance finance income from reinsurance
contracts held

Net insurance finance expenses

Net insurance and investment result

Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains
Other income
Other operating expenses

Profit hefore tax
Income tax (expenses)/credits

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Actuarial gains on post-retirement obligation, net
of tax

Fair value (loss)/gain of equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Note

13
13,17
13

15

16
17

20

2024
HKD

1,819,140,453

(1,009,005,005)

(482,359,535)

2023
HKD

1,931,470,349

(1,091,865,907)

(591,567,432)

327,775,913 248,037,010
112,048,809 115,267,776
(4,862,037)  (56,751,244)
107,186,772 58,516,532
(106,578,561)  (50,326,967)
60,669,670 16,293,100

(45,908,891)

(34,033,867)

61,277,881 24,482,665
(2,349,637) 260,476
17,086,727 10,460,996

(153,590,555)

(156,176,183)

250,200,329 127,064,964
(31,976,645) 169,424
218,223,684 127,234,388
15,555,874 2,341,999
(2,958,000) 1,473,000
12,597,874 3,814,999
230,821,558 131,049,387

The notes on pages 13 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023
HKD HKD
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flow used in operating activities 21 (605,623,077) (671,391,887)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of intangible assets 7 (2,318,135) (13,156,926)
Interests received 52,338,175 90,207,583
Purchases of term deposits (1,430,670,546) (1,361,367,075)
Maturities of term deposits 1,917,724,432 2,350,382,597
Net cash flow generated from investing activities 537,073,926 1,066,066,179
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease payments (26,961,376) (29,808,478)
Payments owed on funds withheld (17,089,108) (50,571,058)
Dividends paid (86,000,000) (84,000,000}
Net cash flow used in financing activities (130,050,484) (164,379,536)
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (198,599,635) 230,294,756
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 576,279,401 344,984,645
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year 11 376,679,766 575,279,401

The notes on pages 13 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
-12-
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

General information

AlG Insurance Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiary (together forming the
“Group”) underwrite general insurance business.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its registered
office is 7/F, One Island East, 18 Westlands Road, Island East, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 April 2025.

Summary of material accounting policy information

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

a Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”, which term
collectively includes Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs™) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Reserve on post-retirement obligation has been separately presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the 2023

comparatives were prepared on the same basis to conform to the presentation for
2024.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in note 3.

(i) New and amended standards and interpretations adopted by the Group
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are
effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2024 which have been

adopted by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024. None of these has a
material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

-13-
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

a

(ii)

Basis of preparation (continued)
New and amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are
effective after 1 January 2025 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, except the following
set out below:

HKFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

In July 2024, the HKICPA issued HKFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements’ (‘HKFRS 18"), effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2027. HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements, introducing new requirements that will help to achieve comparability of
the financial performance of similar entities and provide more relevant information
and transparency to users.

Even though HKFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in
the consolidated financial statements, it is expected to change the presentation and
disclosure of the consolidated financial statements, in particular those related to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and providing management-
defined performance measures within the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is currently assessing the detailed implications of applying the new
standard on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The Group expects to
apply this new standard from its mandatory effective date of 1 January 2027.
Retrospective application is required, and so the comparative information for the

financial year ending 31 December 2026 will be restated in accordance with HKFRS
18.

-14 -
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Summary of material accounting policy information (continued)

b

(i

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The Group comprises the Hong Kong office and the Macau
branch. The functional currency of the Hong Kong office and the Macau branch are
HKD and Macau Pataca (*MOP*) respectively. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented in HKD.

Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line

method to allocate their costs to their residual vaiues over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Intangible assets
Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognized
as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group are recognized as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

(i) It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be
available for use;

(ii) Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

(iii) There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

(iv) It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable
future economic benefits;

v) Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the software product are available; and

(vi) The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development
can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software product include
the software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of directly
attributable overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognized as
an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognized as an expense
are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortized using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of three to five years,

-15-
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AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of material accounting policy information (continued)

e

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment model in HKFRS 9 sets out a three-stage mode! based on changes
in credit quality since initial recognition. The impairment approach is based on an
expected credit loss ("ECL") approach that is applied to all financial assets measured
at amortized cost (“AC”). The Group recognizes a loss allowance for ECL for all
financial investments measured at AC using the general approach under HKFRS 9.

The general approach

Under the general approach, the Group recognizes either 12-month or lifetime ECL
based on an assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk (“SICR”) on a financial instrument subsequent to initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers the change in the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in
the amount of ECL. For the purposes of determining the risk of default, the Group
applies the definition used for internal credit risk management purposes for the
relevant financial instrument and considers qualitative indicators when appropriate.
In measuring the ECL, the Group considers forward looking information which is
reasonably available without undue effort.

Measuring ECL

The ECL is the discounted amount of the probability of default (*PD"), exposure at
default ("EAD”) and loss given default (“LGD”). The discount rate used in the ECL
calculation is the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month
and for each individual exposure or collective segment and is measured on either a
12-month or lifetime basis, depending on whether a SICR has occurred subsequent
to initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining the 12-month
and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. These assumptions vary by product type. The
assumptions underlying the ECL calculation are monitored and reviewed on an
annual basis. There have been no significant changes in estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the reporting period.

The Group applies a definition of default that is consistent with the definition used
for internal credit risk management purposes for the relevant financial instrument
and considers qualitative indicators (such as financial covenants) when appropriate.

The Group considers the follows as indicators of a SICR:

- When payments are more than 30 days past due, unless other indicators are
present that indicate otherwise.

- Breaching the established threshold to determine whether the remaining
lifetime probability of default at the reporting date has increased significantly
compared to the residual lifetime PD expected at the reporting date when the
exposure was first recognized.
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2

Summary of material accounting policy information (continued)

f

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Insurance contracts
Summary of measurement approaches

The Group uses the premium allocation approach (‘PAA”) for all groups of insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held.

The Group issues general insurance products to individuals and companies. These
include casualty, financial lines, property, personal accident and motor products.
These products offer protection of a policyholder's assets and indemnification of
other parties that have suffered damage as a result of a policyholder's accident.

Definition and classification

A contract is recognized as an insurance contract if it involves the transfer of
significant insurance risk by the Group. Insurance risk is transferred to the Group
where it agrees to compensate a policyholder if a specified uncertain future event,
other than those caused by changes in a financial variable such as interest and
foreign exchange rates, adversely affects the policyhoider. The Group uses
judgement to assess whether a contract transfers insurance risk (i.e., if there is a
scenario with commercial substance in which the Group has the possibility of a loss
on a present value basis) and whether the insurance risk accepted is significant.
Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an
insurance contract until derecognized even if the insurance risk becomes
insignificant during this period.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group places reinsurance with affiliated and
unaffiliated reinsurance and insurance companies in order to manage exposures by
limiting its maximum net loss arising from large risks or catastrophic events and
protect the capital position of the Group. A reinsurance contract is deemed to transfer
significant insurance risk if it transfers to the reinsurer substantially all of the
insurance risk from the reinsured portion of the underlying insurance contracts, even
if it does not expose the reinsurer to the possibility of a significant loss.

A variety of traditional reinsurance products are used in connection with the Group’s
risk management strategy. These products include stop-loss treaties, which are
designed to limit exposure to losses resulting from natural catastrophes and other
events which may result in significant losses, and quota share treaties which cover
specific lines of business. Facultative reinsurance is also used to manage large
policy specific individual risk exposures.

Separation of insurance contracts
Where multiple insurance components are incorporated into a single contact, these
multiple insurance components are measured separately where facts and

circumstances indicate that separation more appropriately reflects the economic
substance of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

f

(iv)

Insurance contracts (continued)
Unit of account

The Group identifies portfolios of insurance contracts that are subject to similar risks
and managed together. Each portfolio is further disaggregated into the following
groups of insurance contracts:

(i contracts that are onerous at initial recognition;

(i) contracts that at initial recognition have no significant possibility of becoming
onerous subsequently; or

(iii} a group of remaining contracts.

These groups are further disaggregated into annual cohorts to ensure contracts
within the group are not issued more than one calendar year apart.

These groups represent the level of aggregation at which insurance contracts are
initially recognized and measured. Once established at initial recognition, the
composition of the groups is not reassessed subsequently.

For each portfolio of contracts, the Group determines the appropriate level at which
reasonable and supportable information is available to assess whether these
contracts are onerous at initial recognition and, for the remaining contracts, whether
they have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently. This level of
granularity determines sets of insurance contracts. The Group uses judgement to
determine the level at which the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that is sufficient to conclude that all contracts within a set are sufficiently
homogenous that they can be allocated to the same group without performing an
individual contract assessment. Where no such information is identified, insurance
contracts are allocated to a group on the basis of a contract-by-contract review.

Where the Group is constrained by laws or regulation from setting a price to different
policyholders fully reflective of their different risk profiles, the effect of such
constraints is disregarded when applying the aggregation requirements of HKFRS
17.

For insurance contracts measured using the PAA, the Group assumes that no such
contracts are onerous at initial recognition, unless facts and circumstances indicate
otherwise. If facts and circumstances indicate that some contracts may be onerous,
an additional assessment is performed to distinguish onerous contracts from non-
onerous contracts. For non-onerous contracts, the Group assesses the likelihood of
changes in relevant facts and circumstances in subsequent periods in determining

whether contracts have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequent
to initial recognition.
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2

Summary of material accounting policy information (continued)

f

(iv)

(v)

Insurance contracts (continued)
Unit of account (continued)

Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately
from portiolios of insurance contracts issued and, unless the economic substance of
the Group’s rights and obligations under reinsurance contracts held meet the
separation requirements, a group of reinsurance contracts held may provide
coverage for underlying contracts that are included in different groups. Each portfolio
is further disaggregated into the following groups of reinsurance contracts:

0] contracts for which there is a net gain at initial recognition;

(i) contracts that at initial recognition, there is no significant possibility of a net
gain arising subsequently; or

(i) other remaining contracts.

These groups are further disaggregated into annual cohorts to ensure contracts
within the group are not entered into more than one calendar year apart.

Reinsurance contracts are assessed for grouping purposes on an individual contract
basis. These groups represent the level of aggregation at which reinsurance
contracts are initially recognized and measured. Once established at initial
recognition, the composition of the groups is not reassessed subsequently.

Recognition and derecognition

The Group initially recognizes a group of insurance contracts issued from the earlier
of the following:

- the beginning of the coverage period:

- the date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group becomes
due or, if there is no due date, is actually received; and

- the date when the Group determines that the group becomes onerous.

The Group recognizes a group of reinsurance contracts held at the earlier of:

- the beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts
held; or

- the date the onerous group of underlying insurance contracts is recognized.

The Group shall delay the recognition of a group of reinsurance contracts held that
provide proportionate coverage until the date that any underlying insurance contract
I8 initially recognized, if that date is later than the beginning of the coverage period
of the group of reinsurance contracts held.

Only contracts that meet the recognition criteria at the reporting date are included
within the groups. Where contracts meet the recognition criteria after the reporting
date, they are added to groups in the reporting period in which the recognition criteria
are met, subject to meeting the annual cohorts’ requirements. The composition of
groups is not reassessed in subsequent periods.
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2

Summary of material accounting policy information (continued)

f

v)

Insurance contracts (continued)

Recognition and derecognition {(continued)

Accounting for confract derecognition

An insurance contract is derecognized when it is extinguished (i.e., when the
obligation specified in the insurance contract expires or is discharged or cancelled).

When an insurance contract accounted for under the PAA is derecognized,
adjustments to the fulfilment cash flows (*FCF”) to remove related rights and
obligations and account for the effect of the derecognition result in the following
amounts being charged immediately to profit or loss:

(i) if the contract is extinguished, any net difference between the derecognized
part of the liability for remaining coverage (“‘LRC") of the original contract and
any other cash flows arising from extinguishment;

(i) if the contract is fransferred to the third party, any net difference between the
derecognized part of the LRC of the original contract and the premium
charged by the third party;

{0 if the original contract is modified resulting in its derecognition, any net
difference between the derecognized part of the LRC and the hypothetical
premium the entity would have charged had it entered into a contract with
equivalent terms as the new contract at the date of the contract modification,
less any additional premium charged for the modification.
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2

Summary of material accounting policy information (continued)

f

(vi)

Insurance contracts (continued)

Measurement

ECFE

Contract boundary

The measurement of a group of insurance contracts includes all the cash flows within
the boundary of each contract in the group. The assessment of the contract
boundary is reviewed every reporting period.

Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they arise from
substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting peried in which the
Group can compel the policyholder to pay premiums or the Group has a substantive
obligation to provide the policyholder with insurance contract services. A substantive
obligation to provide insurance contract services ends when:

{i) The Group has the practical ability to reprice the risks of the particular
policyholder and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully
reflects those risks; or

(ii) Both of the following criteria are satisfied:

- The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the
portfolio of insurance contracts that contains the contract and, as a
result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of
that portfolio; or

- The pricing of the premiums up to the date when the risks are
reassessed does not take into account the risks that relate to periods
after the reassessment date.

In assessing the practical ability to reprice, the Group considers all risks transferred
from the policyholder to the Group, such as insurance risk and financial risk; with
other non-policyholder risks, such as lapse or surrender and expense risk, being
excluded.

Cash flows ocutside of the boundary of the insurance contract are excluded from
measurement. These cash flows relate to future insurance contracts.

For groups of reinsurance contracts held, cash flows are within the confract
boundary if they arise from substantive rights and obligations of the Group that exist
during the reporting period in which the Group is compelled to pay amounts to the
reinsurer or in which the Group has a substantive right to receive insurance contract
services from the reinsurer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

f

(vi)

Insurance contracts {continued)
Measurement (continued)

FCF (continued)

Contract boundary (continued}

The Group’s quota share reinsurance contracts held have an unlimited duration but
are cancellable for new business by either party by giving notice effective at the next
anniversary date. This cancellation period is included within the contract boundary
of the reinsurance contracts. Estimates of future cash flows arising from all
underlying contracts either: issued at the reporting date; or, expected to be issued
during the cancellation period after the reporting date, are included in each of the
reinsurance contracts’ measurement.

The excess of loss and accident year stop loss reinsurance contracts held provide
coverage for claims incurred during an accident year. Therefore, all cash flows
arising from claims incurred and expected to be incurred in the accident year are
included in the measurement of the reinsurance contracts held.

Cash flows that are not directly attributable to a portfolio of insurance contracts, such
as some product development and training costs, are recognized in other operating
expenses as incurred.

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Insurance acquisition cash flows represent cash flows arising from the costs of
selling, underwriting and starting a group of insurance contracts (issued or expected
to be issued). Such costs include;

- costs directly attributable to individual contracts and groups of contracts; and
- costs directly attributable to the portfolic of insurance contracts to which the
group belongs.

The Group uses a systematic and rational method (i.e. use of activity-based costing
techniques) to allocate:

(i) Insurance acquisition cash flows that are directly attributable to a group of
insurance contracts:
- to that group; and
- to groups that include insurance contracts that are expected to arise

from the renewals of the insurance contracts in that group.

i) Insurance acquisition cash flows directly aftributable to the portfolio of
insurance contracts that are not directly attributable to a group of insurance
contracts, to groups in the portfolio.
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Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

f
(vi)

Insurance contracts (continued)
Measurement (continued)

Initial recognition

The Group uses the PAA for measuring insurance contracts issued where:

- The coverage period of the contracis is one year or less; or

- The Group has determined that the LRC measured under the PAA for a
group of insurance contracts issued would not differ materially from the LRC
measured under the general measurement model (“GMM?).

The majority of insurance contracts issued meets first criteria above.
The Group uses the PAA for measuring reinsurance contracts held where:

- The coverage period of the contracts is one year or less; or

- The Group has determined that the assets for remaining coverage (*ARC")
measured under the PAA for a group of reinsurance contracts held would not
differ materially from the ARC measured under the GMM.

The majority of reinsurance contracts held meets first criteria above.

The Group has determined that all groups of insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts held by the Group are eligible to apply the PAA and the Group
has elected to apply this measurement model to all groups of insurance contracts.

For insurance contracts issued, insurance acquisition costs are deferred and
recognized over the coverage period of the contracts in a group.

For insurance contracts issued, the Group measures the LRC for the group of
insurance contracts:

0] at the amount of premiums received, if any, in cash; minus
(ii) any insurance acquisition cash flows paid at that date; plus or minus
(iii) any amounts arising from the derecognition at that date of:
- any asset for insurance acquisition cash flows; and
- any other asset or liability previously recognized for cash flows related
to the group of contracts.

For reinsurance contracts held, the asset for remaining coverage is measured at the
amount of ceding premiums paid net of ceding commission.

-23-



== = =

.

AlIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

f

(vi)

Insurance contracts (continued)

Measurement {continued)

Subsequent measurement

For insurance contracts issued, the carrying amount of a group of insurance
contracts at the reporting date is the sum of;

)] The LRC, measured as discussed below: and
(ii) The liability for incurred claims ("LIC”"), comprising the FCF related to past
service allocated to the group at the reporting date.

At each subsequent reporting date, the LRC for a group of insurance contracts is
comprised of:

(1 The amount of the LRC at the beginning of the period; plus

(i) Premiums received in cash during the period; minus

(iii) Insurance acquisition cash flows paid; minus

(iv) Amounts of expected premiums recognized as insurance revenue for
services provided in the period; plus

(V) Amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows recognized as insurance
service expenses for services provided in the period; plus or minus

(i) The effect of any currency exchange differences on the LRC; and plus or
minus

(viiy  An adjustment to a financing component.

For reinsurance contracts held, the carrying amount of a group of insurance
contracts at the reporting date is the sum of:

{i) The ARC: and
{ii) The assets for incurred claims ("AIC”), comprising the FCF related to past
service allocated to the group at the reporting date.

At each subsequent reporting date, the ARC for a group of reinsurance contracts
held is comprised of:

{i) The amount of the ARC at the beginning of the period; plus

{ii) Ceding premiums paid net of ceding commissions in cash during the period,;
minus

(iii) Amounts of ceding premiums recognized as reinsurance expenses for
services received in the period; plus or minus

(iv) The effect of any currency exchange differences on the ARC; and plus or
minus

(v) An adjustment to a financing component.
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Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

f

(vi)

(vii)

Insurance contracts {continued)
Measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Adjustment fo a financing component

Where insurance contracts in a group of insurance contracts have a significant
financing component, the Group adjusts the carrying amount of the LRC to reflect
the time value of money and the effect of financial risk using the discount rates
determined at initial recognition. The Group has elected not to adjust the carrying
amount of the LRC for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk where
the period between the Group providing insurance services and the due date for the
receipt of the related premium is no more than one year. The Group has also elected
not to adjust the carrying amount of the LIC for the fime value of money and the
effect of financial risk where the period between the date a claim is incurred and the
expected settlement date of the relevant cash flows is one year or less.

Onerous contracts

Where a group of insurance contracts is onerous, either at initial recognition or
subseguently, the Group increases the carrying amount of the LRC to be equivalent
to the FCF determined under the GMM, with the increase recognized immediately in
insurance service expenses and presented as a loss component of the LRC for the
group. In subsequent periods, the Group amortizes the loss component of the LRC,
decreasing insurance service expenses. The reversal of the loss component is
based on the passage time over the remaining coverage period of contracts included
within the onerous group. Where facts and circumstances indicate that the expected
profitability of the onerous group during the remaining coverage period has changed,
the Group remeasures the FCF, applying the principles of the GMM, and recognizes
any change in the FCF by adjusting the loss component until the loss component is
reduced to zero.

For reinsurance contracts held, when a loss is recognized on initial recognition of an
onerous group of underlying insurance contracts, the Group adjusts the carrying
amount of the ARC for a related reinsurance contract held by the amount of income
recognized in profit or loss and establishes or adjusts a loss-recovery component of
the ARC for the amount of income recognized.

Insurance service result from insurance contracts issued

Insurance revenue

Insurance revenue for the period depicts the transfer of promised insurance services
at an amount that reflects the portion of consideration the Group expects to be
entitled to in exchange for those services.

For groups of confracts measured under the PAA, the Group allocates expected

premium receipts and recognizes insurance revenue during the coverage period
based on the passage of time.
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Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

f

(vii)

(viii)

Insurance contracts (continued)
Insurance service result from insurance contracts issued (continued)

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service expenses include the following:

- Incurred claims and benefits excluding investment components, including an
estimate for claims incurred but not reported at the reporting date;

- Other incurred directly attributable insurance service expenses;

- Amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows; and

- Changes that relate to past service (i.e., changes in FCF relating to the LIC);

- Changes that relate to future service — losses (and reversals of losses) on
onerous groups of insurance contracts from changes in the loss components.

For contracts measured under the PAA, amortization of insurance acquisition cash
flows is based on the passage of time.

Insurance service result from reinsurance contracts held

The financial performance of groups of reinsurance contracts held is presented on a
net basis comprising:

- Reinsurance expenses;

- Incurred claims recoveries;

- Effect of changes in the risk of reinsurers’ non-performance;

- Changes relating to past service (i.e., changes that adjust expected amounts
recoverable for incurred claims); and

- Amounts relating to the accounting for onerous groups of underlying
insurance contracts issued including income on initial recognition of onerous
underlying contracts.

Reinsurance expenses are recognized similarly to insurance revenue. The amount
of reinsurance expenses recognized in the reporting period depicts the transfer of
reinsurance services received at an amount that reflects the portion of ceding
premium the Group expects to pay in exchange for those services.

For groups of reinsurance contracts held measured under the PAA, the Group
recognizes reinsurance expenses hased on the passage of time over the coverage
period of the underlying policies.

Ceding commissions that are not contingent on claims of the underlying contracts

issued reduce ceding premiums and are accounted for as part of reinsurance
expenses.
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Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

f
(ix)

(i)

Insurance contracts {continued)
Insurance finance income or expenses

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount
of the group of insurance contracts arising from:

- The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of
money; and
- The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

For groups of insurance contracts measured under the PAA, the main amounts
within insurance finance income or expenses are:

- Interest accreted on the LRC and LIC; and
- The effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions.

The Group includes all insurance finance income or expenses for the period in profit
or loss, and does not apply the other comprehensive income option.

Employee bhenefits
Pension
The Group operates both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan that
defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

Post-retirement obligations

The Group provides retirement benefits through defined contribution plans and
defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

Some of the employees are under official retirement schemes (the “ORSQ” scheme)
and some of the employees are under mandatory provident fund schemes (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance.
Contributions to the ORSO or MPF Scheme are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
schemes and are reduced by the voluntary contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the voluntary contributions.
The assets of the ORSO or MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.
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Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

g
(ii)

(i)

Employee henefits (continued)
Post-retirement obligations (continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides post-retirement medical care and life insurance benefits to the
retirees. Active employees are eligible for retirement at age 65 or after age 55 and
the completion of 15 years of service.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect
of post-retirement obligations is the present value of the post-retirement benefit
obligation at end of the financial reporting pericd. The post-retirement benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the post-retirement benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate honds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related post-retirement benefit liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumpticns are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the
period in which they oceour,

Share-based compensation

All share-based compensation granted to employees of the Group are made
reference to shares in the Group’s ultimate parent, American International Group,
Inc. ("AIG”), and are classified as equity-settled group share based compensation.

Equity-settled plans are measured at fair value of the equity instruments on the grant
date and recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to shareholders’
equity, on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Where the Group is recharged by a related company for the cost of seftling share-
hased compensation, the charge is recognized in the consolidated financial
statements when the shared-based awards are setiled. The payment, made in cash,
is recognized as a decrease in shareholders’ equity.
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Summary of material accounting policy information {continued)

g
(i)

(iv)

M

(ii)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based compensation (continued)

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
awards as at the grant date. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions regarding the number of awards that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of awards that are expected
to vest based on non-market vesting conditions. It recognizes the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Employees leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting pericd. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognized until the time of
leave.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settie the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Levies

The Group is subject to various insurance-related levies. Related provisions are
provided for where there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.

- Insurance revenue is recognized as revenue on the basis set out in note
2f(vii).

- Interest revenue is recognized as accrued based on the effective interest
method.
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3

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimates of future cash flows teo fulfil insurance contracts

The cash flows related to the LIC can generally be categorized into two distinct groups. One
group is short-tail classes of business consisting mainly of property, consumer lines, marine
and energy. The other group is long-tail commercial lines of business which includes excess
and primary liability, directors and officers, professional liability, employers’ liability, general
liability and related classes.

Short-tail classes do not have a significant delay from the date of accident to date of report
to the Group and then settled by the Group. The estimates for these classes are more reliant
on the case estimate on individual claims and utilize loss development methodologies in the
projection of the future development of these case estimates.

Long-tail classes generally relate to coverage where litigation is frequent or where there is
an element of bodily injury, especially in situations with long term injury. For these classes
it may take some time from the date of accident for the claim to emerge and for claims to be
settled from notification date due to the time taken to establish liability. Estimation of ultimate
net indemnity losses and loss expenses for long-tail lines of business is a complex process
and depends on a number of factors, including the class and volume of business involved
as well as the complexity of the individual claim and the uncertainty of the business
environment. The actuarial methods used by the Group for most long-tail commercial lines
include loss development methods and expected loss ratio methods, including the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson method. Exceptional large claims or events, to the extent that these
distort the historical development, are often removed from the analysis and considered
separately.

Discount rates

The Group applies a bottom-up approach to derive the discount rate for insurance contracts.
The Group determines the discount rates based on liquid risk-free yield curves, for the
currency of each insurance contract within the group, which are adjusted to take into account
the differences between the liquidity characteristics of the group of insurance contracts and
the liquidity characteristics of risk-free financial investments.

The yield curves that have been used to discount estimates of future cash flows to fulfil
insurance contracts are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024
Currency 1year 2years 3years Syears 10years
All lines HKD 3.9% 3.9% 4.0% 4.1% 4.6%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Currency T1year 2vears 3years Svyears 10 vyears
All lines HKD 4.4% 4,.0% 3.7% 3.6% 3.7%
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)
Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment represents compensation for uncertainty, estimates are made on the
dearee of diversification benefits and expected favorable and unfavorable outcomes in a
way that reflects the Group’s degree of risk aversion. The Group estimates an adjustment
for non-financial risk separately from all other estimates.

The risk adjustment is calculated at the entity level and then allocated down to each group
of insurance contracts in accordance with their risk profiles. For general insurance business,
the gross risk adjustment estimation approach uses a statistical modelling tool to generate
an independent risk coefficient of variation ("CoV"). The CoV is used as inputs and actuarial
judgement is exercised to derive the gross risk adjustment for non-financial risk. The risk
adjustment is calibrated at a 75% level of sufficiency after taking into account diversification
benefits.

Risk and capital management

The Company underwrites general insurance business. As of 31 December 2024, the
Company’s subsidiary was dormant. The risks of the Company are considered to be the
same as those described in the context of the consolidated Group.

Risk management in the context of the Group is discussed below.
a Insurance risk

Insurance risk for general insurance refers to fluctuations in the timing, frequency,
and severity of insured events relative to the expectations at the time of underwriting.
Insurance risk can also refer to fluctuations in the timing and amount of claim
settlements. Some specific examples of insurance risk include variations in the
amount or frequency of claims or the unexpected occurrence of multiple claims
arising from a single cause. Insurance risk also includes the potential for expense
overruns relative to pricing or provisioning assumptions.
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a

Insurance risk (continued)
The key components of insurance risk for the Group are:

Underwriting risk

The risk arising from uncertainties about the ultimate amount of net cash flows from
premiums, commissions, claims and claims settlement expenses paid under a
contract (prospective in nature).

Timing risk
The risk arising from uncertainfies about the timing of the receipt and payment of
those cash flows.

Reserving risk
The risk that the LIC will be insufficient to cover the ultimate payout of claims

(retrospective in nature).

Accumulation / Catastrophe risk

The risk of arising from concentration of exposures by industry, geography, line of

business, a single incurred or single insured event, and, in particular

- Risk arising from concentration of exposures exposed to catastrophe perils;

- Risk arising from concentration of exposures of the same insured
underwritten by multiple divisions of the Group, each division offering
individual and separate limits;

- Clash risk, or risks arising from exposures in which multiple insured suffer
losses from the same occurrence, or the same cause of loss, such as a wild
fire, a train crash, or a batch of component parts.

Insurance risk will be evaluated on two separate factors — the frequency that the risk
can occur and the severity of the impact if the risk occurred. The evaluation can be
quantitative and qualitative depending on the information and on the expertise,
experience and judgement of those conducting the assessment.

Where risks or aggregation of risks are identified that exceed the risk appetite by the
Group, the Local Risk Management Committee has the authority to decide a course
of action to mitigate or monitor the risk. The Group has set individual underwriting
limits at various levels for all employees and agents that have the authority to
underwrite insurance risk. These include both menetary limits and limits on the types
of risk that they can underwrite. In addition, the Group may set maximum limits by
risk, line of business or in the aggregate, beyond which immediate, emergency
actions should be taken. The Group also employs adequate in-house legal resources
to review and approve non-standard policy wordings to ensure that these wordings
do not expose the Group to more, or higher, claims that it is expecting. Furthermore,
there are procedures in place for managing claims and claims approval authority
limit delegations.
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a

Insurance risk (continued)

The Group manages insurance risks through reinsurance to reduce the effect of
potential losses to the Group. Two types of reinsurance agreements, ceding on a
quota share basis or excess of loss basis, are usually used to cover insurance
liability risk, with retention limits varying by product line and territory. Amounts
recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the
outstanding claim provisions and are in accordance with the reinsurance confracts.
Although the Group has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct
obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to
ceded insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations
assumed under such reinsurance arrangements.

Frequency and severity of claims

The concentration of insurance risk in relation fo insurance risk accepted is

summarized below, with reference to the carrying amount of the LIC.

2024 2023

HKD % HKD %
Accident and health 56,671,998 2% 64,867,203 2%
Workers compensation 1,423,319,519 42% 1,604,880,157 45%
Auto 188,938,144 6% 188,606,668 5%
Casualty Auto 33,417,019 1% 27,347,568 1%
Energy 79,310,262 2% 79,125,354 2%
Excess 72,997,838 2% 74,165,983 2%
Financial lines 1,154,813,240 33% 1,089,545,800 31%
General liabllity 141,727,316 4% 154,558,064 4%
Homeowners 28,851,597 1% 47,600,908 1%
Marine 51,479,344 2% 40,073,331 1%
Property 92,996,522 3% 107,827,600 3%
Small business solutions 82,177,698 2% 96,430,811 3%
Surety 2,334,679 0% 3,038,093 0%
Trade credit 6,019,402 0% 3,618,692 0%
Warranty 9,530 0% 24,456 0%
Total 3.415,064,108 100% 3,581,710,786 100%
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(ii)

Insurance risk (continued)
Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims are generally payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Group is liable for
all insured events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is
discovered after the end of the contract term. As a result, there are claims provision
that relates to incurred but not reported claims (*IBNR”). There are several variables
that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these contracts. These mainly
relate to the inherent risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract
holders and the risk management procedures they adopted.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling
claims, net of the expected subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes
all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims
exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is
likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability
established. The liability for these contracts is the LIC at the reporting date.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reporied and not), the
Group's estimation techniques include paid and incurred, chain ladder,
Bornhuetter-Ferguson and other methods.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than
the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to
the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims has
happened.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group
considers any information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost
of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. Large claims are
assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the
possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the
portfolio.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level
of provisions. This provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the
experience being projected. The projections given by the various methodologies also
assist in estimating the range of possibie outcomes. The most appropriate estimation
technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class
and the extent of the development of each accident year.

Note 13c presents the development of the estimate of ultimate claim cost for claims

notified in a given year. This gives an indication of the accuracy of the Group’s
estimation technique for claims payments.
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0

Market risk

Market risk is defined as the potential loss in value or earnings arising from changes
in the values at which assets and liabilities may be fraded as a resuit of external
market economic factors including:

- Changes in the overall level of interest rates {interest rate risk);
- Exchange rate movements (foreign currency risk); and
- Equity market movements (price risk).

In addition to the above external factors, market risk may also arise from controllable
factors such as allocation to specific asset classes.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s investment activities and insurance activities are inherently exposed to
interest rate risk. The Group manages this risk by investing in assets that mature

within one year and beyond one year respectively that matches with the liabilities.

The table below presents the annual effective interest rate of the Group’s term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

2024 2023
Term deposits 3.147% 2.186%
Cash and cash equivalents 0.721% 3.858%

Details of the discount rates used for insurance contracts are set out in note 3.

The impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income of a
50 basis-points increase or decrease in market interest rates from the rates
applicable at 315 December, with all other variables held constant, would have been:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Impact impact
on profit on profit
before tax Impact en equity before tax Impact on equity
HKD HKD HKD HKD
Interest rate risk
Cash at bank
+ 50 basis points 1,377,650 1,377,650 1,513,476 1,513,476
- 50 basis points (1,377,650) {1,377,650) (1,5613,4786) (1,513,476)
insurance confracts
+ 50 basis points 14,332,360 14,332,360 15,269,792 15,269,792
- 50 basis points (14,669,281) (14,669,281) (15,842,357) (15,642,357)

This analysis is based on a hypothetical situation, as in practice market interest rates
rarely change in isolation, and should not be considered a projection of likely future
profits or losses.
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b Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

The Group’s major revenue, expenditures, financial assets and liabilities, and
insurance assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD, MOP and US dollar (‘USD")
respectively. The other currencies are not significant and represent -0.04% of
insurance and financial assets in 2024 (0.04% in 2023). It is considered that the
Group has no significant exposure to the foreign exchange risk as HKD is currently
pegged with USD and pegged by MOP.

The following tables summarize the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the
reporting date by categorizing financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance
contract assets and insurance contract liabilities by major currency.

Total
HXD usD MOP Others HKD
As at 31 December 2024
Club debentures 25,859,000 - - - 25,959,000
Reinsurance contract assets 2,087,807,166 26,737,636 37,431,414 (2,468,523} 2,149,507,693
Intercompany balance receivables - 14,122,216 - - 14,122,216
Other receivables 23,983,104 206,890 - - 24,189,994
Cash and bank balances 3,133,214,524 509,347,831 88,214,389 - 3,730,776,744
Total insurance and financial assets  5,270,963,794 550,414,573 125,645,803 (2,468,523) 5,944,655,647
Insurance contract liabilities 3,573,367,415 65,151,439 75,052,936 (3,146,760) 3,710,425,030
Intercompany balances payables - 14,978,098 - - 14,978,096
Other payables 59,460,944 587,337 981,976 - 61,030,257
Total insurance and financial
liabilities 3,632,828,358 80,716,872 76,034,812 (3,146,760) 3,786,433,383
Net insurance and financial assets /
(liabilities} 1,638,135,435 469,697,701 49,610,891 678,237 2,158,122,264
As at 31 Decamber 2023
Club debentures 28,917,000 - - - 28,917,000
Reinsurance contract assets 2,063,102,047 (496,331,817) 32,421,421 2,151,472 1,801,344,023
Intercompany halance receivables - 13,469,128 - - 13,469,128
Other receivables 23,535,436 1,537,307 (1,458) - 25,071,285
Cash and bank balances 3,561,168,876 707,996,631 87,554,124 - 4,356,719,631
Total insurance and financial assets  5,676,724,259 226,671,249 119,974,087 2,151,472 6,025,521,067
Insurance contract liabilities 3,799,824,519 62,042,209 61,812,945 5,151,071  3,928,830,744
Intercompany balances payables - 36,482,733 - - 36,482,733
Other payables 52,076,698 11,927,093 1,017,241 28,403 65,049,435
Total insurance and financial
Tiabilities 3,851,901,217 110,452,035 62,830,186 5,179,474 4,030,362,912
Net insurance and financial assets /
{liabilities} 1,824,823,042 116,219,214 57,143,901 (3,028,002) 1,995,158,155
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Risk and capital management {continued)

b

(iif)

Market risk (continued)
Price risk

Price rigk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or fereign
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar instruments traded in
the market. The Group did not have material amount of investments as at year end
that would be subject to significant price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential risk of default of a counterparty or obligor under various
legal agreements with the Group, including payment agreements, reimbursement
agreements, guarantees, and other financial obligations including financial
instruments, reinsurance, etc. It also includes the risk of the counterparty or obligor's
credit rating being downgraded, which may impact an insured’s payments and other
financial obligations to the Group.

The Group mitigates the level of credit risk it accepts by:

- Counterparties with whom the Group assumes credit risk are reviewed at
least annually to monitor any changes in their financial profile and strength;

- AIG Credit Risk Management (“‘AIG CRM”) maintains a list of approved
bankers for which collateral can be taken in support of insurance programs;

- Investments and approved bank operating accounts are selected and
monitored by Regional Investment, Regional Treasury and AIG CRM,;

- Reinsurance counterparties are reviewed to ensure their acceptability.

The following tables summarize the financial analysis of financial assets and
reinsurance contract assets categorized by Standard & Poor's (“S&P*) rating (or
equivalent when not available from S&P). The amounts disclosed represent the
maximum exposure to credit risk which are their gross carrying amounts. All financial
assets are subject to 12-month ECL.

Rating table:

Rating agencies Standard & Equivalent to Equivalent to
Poor's Moody’s Fitch

Investment grade AA+ Aai AA+
AA Aa2 AA
AA- Aa3 AA-
At A1 A+
A A2 A
A- A3 A-
BBB+ Baa1l BBB+
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Credit risk (continued)

At 31 December 2024

Reinsurance contract
assets

Intercompany balance
receivables

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Total financial assets and

reinsurance contract
assels bearing credit risk

At 31 December 2023

Reinsurance contract
assets

Intercompany balance
receivables

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Total financial assets and
reinsurance contract
assets bearing credit risk

Risk and capital management {continued)

AA- 10 AA+ A-to A+ B to BBB+ Unrated Total

HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD

(2,812,562) 1,926,038945  (18,857,059) 245,138,369  2,149,507,693

- 6,119,479 - 8,002,737 14,122,216

- - - 24,189,994 24,189,994

384,048,908  3,341,081,560 - 5,646,276  3,730,776,744

381,236,346 5,273,239,984 (18,857,059) 282,977,376  5,818,596,647

AA-to AA+ A-to A+ B to BBB+ Unrated Total

HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD

- 1,492,983177 - 108,360,846  1,601,344,023

- 7,268,193 - 6,200,935 13,469,128

- - - 25,071,285 25,071,285

497,378,163  3,654,343,403 - 204,998,065 4,356,719,631

497,378,163  5,154,594,773 - 344,631,131  5,996,604,087
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()

Liquidity risk

Liquidity is the risk that the Group does not maintain a sufficient amount of liquidity
to meet its contractual obligations as and when they fall due without incurring
excessive cost.

The Group maintains a level of liquidity sufficient to meet its own financial obligations
in a timely manner. Furthermore, the Group will invest excess liquidity in eligible
assets in order to achieve a competitive rate of return.

The Group monitors internal and external factors which may change the liquidity risk
profile by assessing the following:

Monitor asset values and other market conditions

- Assess the impact of market forces, current and forecast, on the value of
assets held and their liquidity characteristics;

- Assess the asset and liability mix in relation to duration, currency and timing
of the matching;

- Assess the actual premium receivable profile, related aging analysis & credit
risk and identify any adverse trends;

- Assess the client mix being pursued by the business to ensure credit risk
issues related to premium collection are considered; and

- Assess the expected reinsurance recoverable and related aging analysis &
credit risks and identify any adverse trends.

Monitor liability profiles

- Monitor the value, frequency and volatility of claims liabilities whether actual
or identifying potential adverse trends that may affect these factors; and

- Assess the external forces on the business which may adversely affect the
timing and value of non-claim related liabilities.

The table below presents the maturity profiles of the Group’s expected future net
cash flows arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts and the contractual
timing and undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The LRC for insurance contracts and ARC for
reinsurance contracts have been excluded from this analysis. The amounts for
insurance and reinsurance contracts represent the estimates of present value of
future net cash flows.
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Risk and capital management (continued)

e

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss, resulting from inadequate or failed infernal
processes, people, and systems, or from external events. The Group controls its
operational risks through the identification, assessmeni, management and
monitoring of risk exposures. This includes:

- Embedding a risk culture through the Group’s operations via training and
management communication,

- Ensuring robust internal processes and systems are maintained; and

- Oversight of key operational risks in significant operations by management
and risk commitiee.

Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

- to comply with the insurance capital and solvency requirements with the
Insurance Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Macau Insurance Ordinance;

- to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide return for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders;

- to provide an adequate return fo shareholders by pricing insurance
contracts with the level of risks.

The Risk-based Capital regime (the “RBC") became effective on 1 July 2024,
following the commencement of the Insurance (Amendment) Ordinance 2023 and
relevant subsidiary legislation and guidelines.

The Company is required to maintain the capital base not less than prescribed
capital amount (“PCA”) as determined in accordance with the Insurance (Valuation
and Capital) Rules (Cap. 41R), minimum capital amount being 50% of the PCA
and HKD20,000,000 pursuant to the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance in
Hong Kong.

During the years, the Company complied with the relevant capital requirements as
set out by the Insurance Ordinance in Hong Kong. In addition, the Company has
maintained a level of additional capital as considered appropriate and with
reference to the Group’s objectives.
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9

Fair value measurement

The Group classifies and measures certain of its financial instruments at fair value.
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount that would be received from
the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction hetween
willing, able and knowledgeable market participants at the measurement date.

The degree of judgment used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments
generally correlates with the level of observable wvaluation inputs. Financial
instruments with quoted prices in active markets generally have more pricing
observability and less judgment is used in measuring fair value. Conversely,
financial instruments for which no quoted prices are available have less
observability and are measured at fair value using valuation models or other pricing
techniques that require more judgment. Pricing observability is affected by a
number of factors, including the type of financial instrument, whether the financial
instrument is new to the market and not yet established, the characteristics specific
to the transaction, liquidity and general market conditions.

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets recorded at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial
position are measured and classified in a hierarchy for disclosure purposes
consisting of three levels based on the characteristics of inputs available in the
marketplace that are used to measure the fair values as noted below:

Level 1

Financial assets included in this category are measured at fair value with reference
to publicly available quoted prices in active markets that the Group has the ability
to access for identical assets. A financial instrument is regarded as being quoted
in an active market if quoted prices are readily available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, pricing service or regulatory agency and the prices quoted represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions conducted at an arm’s length basis.

Level 2

Financial assets included in this category are measured at fair value based on
inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 above, that are observabie for
the asset either direcily or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted market prices
for similar assets in active markets, quoted prices for identical assets in markets
that are considered less than active and other inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset, such as interest rates and vield curves that are
observable at commonly quoted intervals.

Level 3
Financial assets included in this category are measured at fair value based on
prices provided by brokers derived from valuation techniques or models that use

significant inputs that are unobservable. These measurements inciude
circumstances in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability.
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g

Fair value measurement (continued)

Valuation Methodologies for non-traded equity investmenis — club debentures

The fair value of club debentures not traded in active markets is measured at the
quoted price provided by the dealer market. The Group adopted the quoted prices
as their fair value at the reporting date and these equity instruments are included
in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

2024 2023
HKD HKD
Level 2
Club debentures 25,959,000 28,917,000

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at AC.

Transfer of Level 1 and Level 2 assets and liabilities

The Group’s policy is to record transfers of assets and liabilities between Level 1
and Level 2 at their fair values as of the end of each reporting period, consistent
with the date of the determination of fair value. Assets are transferred out of Level
1 when they are no longer fransacted with sufficient frequency and volume in an
active market. The Group had no transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 during the years.
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5 Property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and
Improvement equipment Total
HKD HKD HKD
As at 31 December 2024
Cost .
At 1 January 2024 32,264,166 9,816,154 42,080,320
Exchange difference 43 39 87
At 31 December 2024 32,264,214 9,816,193 42,080,407
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2024 23,086,834 9,083,858 32,170,692
Charge far the year (Note 17) 5,606,399 732,296 6,238,695
Exchange difference 48 39 87
At 31 December 2024 28,503,281 9,816,193 38,409,474
Net book value
At 31 December 2024 3,670,933 - 3,670,933
As at 31 December 2023
Cost
At 1 January 2023 32,263,743 13,683,240 45,946,983
Disposal - (3,867,421) (3,867,421)
Exchange difference 423 335 758
At 31 December 2023 32,264,166 9,816,154 42,080,320
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2023 17,580,013 12,004,558 29,584,571
Charge for the year (Note 17) 5,606,398 946,386 6,452,784
Disposal - (3,867,421) (3,867,421)
Exchange difference 423 335 758
At 31 December 2023 23,086,834 9,083,858 32,170,692
Net book value
At 31 December 2023 9,177,332 732,296 9,909,628
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AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 Lease

a The consolidated statement of financial position

relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets
- Offices
- Motor vehicle and equipment

Total

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

Total

Additions in right-of-use assets during the year
- Offices

Total

Disposal in right-of-use assets during the year
- Staff quarter

Total

- 46 -

shows the following amounts

2024 2023

HKD HKD
14,316,120 37,622,223
- 724,758
14,316,120 38,246,981
13,918,855 24,497,863
- 15,646,414
13,918,855 40,144,277
2024 2023

HKD HKD

- 915,087

- 915,087

- 2,178,384

- 2,178,384




AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6

Lease (continued)

b The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the following

amounts relating to leases:

2024 2023
HKD HKD
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

- Offices 23,206,103 23,214,310
- Staff quarter - 2,497,509
- Motor vehicle and equipment 724,758 919,181
- Exchange differences - 203
23,930,861 26,631,203
Interest expenses (included in other expenses) 735,954 1,592,056
735,954 1,592,056
Other income from early termination - (73,929)
- (73,929)

Net expenses recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income 24,666,815 28,149,330

The Group leases offices, staff quarter, motor vehicle and printing equipment. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used
as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present vaiue basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present vaiue of the fixed payments. The lease paymenis
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial
measurement of lease liability and any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received any initial direct costs, and
restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain fo exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful
life. Payments associated with short-term leases of office are recognized on a straight-line
basis as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 Intangible assets — computer software

Cost

At 1 January
Addition
Disposal

At 31 December
Accumulated amortization
At 1 January

Charge for the year {Note 17)

Disposal

At 31 December

Net book value

8 Deferred tax liabilities

2024 2023
HKD HKD
35,361,310 33,279,740
2.318,135 13,156,926
- (11,075,356)
37,679,445 35,361,310
24,359,086 32,155,538
3,376,056 3,279,804
- (11,075,356)
07,736,042 24,359,986
9,943,403 11,001,324

Deferred income tax for the Company has been provided at a flat rate of 8.25% for
qualifying insurance business profit based on concessionary tax rate applicable to

specified insurer and 16.50% for non-qualifying insurance business profit.

a Deferred income tax liabilities for the year have been recognized for in the accounts
as follows:
2024 2023
HKD HKD
At 1 January (1,293,464) (8,917,059)
Credited to the profit or loss {Note 8b) 3,920,682 7,766,151
Charged to the other comprehensive income
(Note 8b) (2,726,049) (142,556)
At 31 December {98,831) (1,293,464)

-48 -
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AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9

10

Club debentures

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”):

At 1 January

Fair value (loss)/gain recognized in fair value reserve

At 31 December

2024 2023
HKD HKD
28,917,000 27,444,000
(2,958,000) 1,473,000
25,959,000 28,917,000

The Group designated its investment in club debentures as FVOCI as they are long-term
investments. The Group has exercised the fair value option for equity securities and fair
value movements will be taken through other comprehensive income with no subsequent

recycling through income on disposal.

Prepayments and other receivables

Prepayments
Other receivables

Current portion
Non-current portion

2024 2023

HKD HKD
812,471 850,790
24,189,994 25,071,285
25,002,465 25,922,075
11,630,301 672,631
13,372,164 25,249,444
25,002,465 25,922,075

The fair value of other receivables does not differ materially from their amortized cost.

-50-
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Cash and bank balances
2024 2023
HKD HKD
Term deposits
With original maturity:
- Greater than 3 months but not greater than 1 year 138,169,319 157,224,905

- Over 1 year 3,067,223,963  3,535,222,263
3,205,393,282 3,692,447,168
Cash and cash equivalents

- Time deposits with original maturity
not greater than 3 months 101,149,813 272,584,178
- Cash at bank 275,529,953 302,695,223
376,679,766 575,279,401
Accrued interest 148,703,696 88,993,062
3,730,776,744  4,356,719,631

The Macau branch holds HKD 128,459,819 (2023: HKD 147,516,176) deposits with bank
to maintain the minimum deposits requirement to MOP 125,000,000 (2023: MOP
125,000,000) to guarantee technical reserves. These deposits are solely to guarantee the
technical reserves and not for any other purposes. These deposits cannot be withdrawn
in whole or in part at their maturity, at the time of subsequent renewal, upon expiry or at
any other time whatsoever, without express authorization of Autoridade Monetaria de

Macau.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12

13

Share capital

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2024

At 31 December 2024

At 1 January 2023

At 31 December 2023

Number of
Share

14,749,365

Share capital
HKD

1,246,318,848

14,749,365

1,246,318,848

14,749,365

1,246,318,848

14,749,365

1,246,318,848

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets

An analysis of amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position for
insurance contracts measured under the PAA, together with the presentation of amounts
falling due to be settled within and after one year are set out in the following table.

As at 31 December 2024

Insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contract assets

As at 31 December 2023

Insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contract assets

Amounts to be
settled within
one year

HKD

1,412,767,941

Amounts to be

settled after more

than one year
HKD

2,297,657,089

Total
HKD

3,710,425,030

822,493 463

1,327,014,230

2,149,507,693

1,432,815,998 2,496,014,746 3,928,830,744
665,584,607 935,749,416 1,601,344,023
-52-



AlIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

a

Reconciliation of the LRC and LIC

For the year ended 31
December 2024

Opening insurance
contract liabilities at 31
December 2023

Insurance revenue

Insurance service

EXpenses

- Incurred claims and
other directly
attributable expenses

- Changes that related
to past service —
adjustment to the LIC

- Losses on onerous
contracts and reversal
of those losses

- Insurance acquisition
cash flows
amortization

Insurance service result

Net insurance finance
expenses from
Insurance contracts
Issued

Total amounts
recognized in total
comprehensive
income

Cash flows

- Premiums received

- Claims and other
directly attributable
expenses paid

- Insurance acquisition
costs paid

Total cash flows

Net balance at 31
December 2024

LRC LIC
Risk
Present value adjustment for
Excluding loss Loss of future cash  non-financial
component  compenent flows risk Total
HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD
323,599,313 23,520,645 3,236,571,259 345,139,627  3,928,830,744
{1,819,140,453) - - - (1,819,140,453)
- - 935,498,655 88,301,952 1,023,800,607
- - (265,981,692) (75,548,447) (341,530,139)
- (12,450,060) - - (12,450,060}
339,184,597 - - - 339,184,597
(1,479,955,856) (12,450,060) 669,516,963 12,753,505 (810,135,448)
8,024,495 - 98,554,066 - 106,578,561
(1,471,931,361) (12,450,060} 768,071,029 12,753,505 (703,556,887)
1,768,009,946 - - - 1,768,009,946
- - (947,471,212) - (947,471,212)
(335,387,561) - - - (335387,561)
1,432,622,385 - (947,471,212) - 485,151,173
284,290,337 11,070,585 3,057,171,076 357,883,032  3,710,425,030
-53-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Reconciliation of the LRC and LIC (continued)

For the vear ended 31
December 2023

Cpening insurance
contract liabilities at 31
December 2022

Insurance revenue

Insurance service

expenses

- Incurred claims and
other directly
attributable expenses

- Changes that related
to past service —
adjustment to the LIC

- Losses on onerous
contracts and reversal
of those losses

- Insurance acquisition
cash flows
amortization

Insurance service resuit

Net insurance finance
expenses from
insurance contracts
issued

Total amounts
recognized in total
comprehensive
income

Cash flows

- Premiums received

- Claims and other
directly attributable
expenses paid

- Insurance acqulisition
costs paid

Total cash flows

Net balance at 31
December 2023

LRC LIC

Risk

Present value adjustment for

Excluding loss Loss of future cash  non-financial
component  component flows risk Total
HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD
349,779,410 19,165,996 3,930,417,0565 373,913,713  4,682,277,074
{1,931,470,349) - - - {1,931,470,349)
- - 1,111,436,470 96,986,777  1,208,423,247
- - {332,146,839) (125,760,963) (457,907,802)
- 4,354,649 - - 4,354,649
336,995,813 - - - 336,995,813
(1,594,474,536) 4,354,649 779,280,631  (28,774,186) (839,604,442)
9,745,543 - 40,581,424 - 50,326,967
(1,584,728,993) 4,354,649 819,871,055  (28,774,186) (789,277,475)
1,892,747 326 - - - 1,892,747,326
- - (1,522,717,751) - (1,522,717,751)
(334,198,430) - - - (334,198,430)
1,558,548,896 - {1,622,717,751) - 35,831,145
323,599,313 23,520,645 3,236,571,25% 345,139,527  3,928,830,744
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

b

Reconciliation of the ARC and AIC

For the year ended 31
December 2024

Opening reinsurance
contract assets at 31 -
December 2023

Net expenses from
reinsurance contracts
held
- Net expenses from
reinsurance contracts
held (excluding the
effect of changes in
the risk of reinsurers’
non-performance

- Effect of changes in
the risk of reinsurers’
non-performance

Net expenses from
reinsurance contracts
held

Insurance finance
income from
reinsurance contracts
held

Total amounts
recognized in total
comprehensive
income

Cash flows

- Premiums paid net of
ceding commissions

- Reinsurance
recovered

Total cash flows

Net balance at 31
December 2024

ARC AlC
Risk
Excluding loss- Present value  adjustment
recovery Loss-recovery of future cash for non-
component component flows financial risk Total
HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD
(783,699,109) 12,978,326 2,176,349,827 195,714,879 1,601,344,023
(743,257,091} (6,888,070) 262,891,303 5,055,650 (482,198,208)
- - (161,327} - (161,327)
(743,257,091) (6,888,070) 262,725,976 5,065,650 (482,359,535)
- - 60,669,670 - 60,669,670
(743,257,091) (6,888,070) 323,399,645 5,055,650 (421,689,865)
1,621,393,968 - - - 1,621,393,968
- - (651,540,433} - (651,540,433}
1,621,393,968 - (651,540,433) - 969,853,535
94,437,768 6,090,256 1,848,209,040 200,770,629 2,149,507,693
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AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

b

Reconciliation of the ARC and AIC (continued)

For the year ended 31
December 2023

Opening reinsurance
contract assets at 31
December 2022

Net expenses from
reinsurance cantracts
held
- Net expenses from

reinsurance contracts

held {excluding the
effect of changes in
the risk of reinsurers’
non-performance

- Effect of changes in
the risk of reinsurers'
non-performance

Net expenses from
reinsurance contracis
held

Insurance finance
income from
reinsurance contracts
held

Total amounts
recognized in total
comprehensive
income

Cash flows

- Premiums paid net of
ceding commissions

- Reinsurance
recovered

Total cash flows

Net balance at 31
December 2023

ARC AlC
Risk
Excluding loss- Present value  adjustment
recovery Loss-recovery of future cash for non-
component component flows financial risk Total
HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD
(1,240,562,824)y 10,602,110 2,612,394,393 225,044,407 1,607,568,086
(796,895,870) 2,286,216 232,369,211 (29,329,428) (591,569,871)
- - 2,439 - 2,439
(796,895,870) 2,286,216 232,371,650 (29,329,428) (591,567,432)
- - 16,203,100 - 16,293,100
(796,895,870) 2,286,216 248,664,750 (29,329,428) (575,274,332)
1,253,759,585 - - - 1,253,759,585
- - (684,709,316) - (684,709,318)
1,253,759,585 - (684,709,316) - 569,050,269
(783,699,108) 12,978,326 2,176,349,827 195,714,979 1,601,344,023
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AlIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

c

@

Sensitivity analysis and claims development tables
Sensitivity analysis to underwriting risk variables

The following tables present information on the sensitivity of insurance contracts
assets and liabilities and profit or loss and equity for reasonable changes in
estimates and assumptions for underwriting risk variables. As possible changes in
underwriting variables only impact the LIC and loss component portion of the LRC
for contracts measured under the PAA, the tables do not include the remaining
portion of the LRC for these groups of insurance contracts. The analysis is
presented for the indicated change in a variable with all other variables remaining
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. No changes were made by the Group in the
methods and assumptions used in preparing the above analysis.

2024
Impact on
Balances as at insurance Impact on
31 December contract profit before Impact on

2024 liabilities tax equity

HKD HKD HKD HKD
All lines
Insurance contract liabilities (3,426,134,693}
Reinsurance contract assets 2,055,069,925
Net insurance contract liabilities  (1,371,064,768)
Unpaid claims and expenses —

5% increase
Insurance contract liabilities {173,533,845) (173,633,845) (173,533,845}
Reinsurance contract assets 103,979,529 103,879,529 103,979,529
Net insurance contract liabilities {69,554,316) (69,554 316) (69,554,316)
Unpaid claims and expenses —
5% decrease

Insurance contract liabilities 173,533,845 173,533,845 173,533,845
Reinsurance contract assets (103,979,528) (103,979,529) (103,979,529)
Net insurance contract liabilities 69,554,316 69,554,316 68,554,316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)
c Sensitivity analysis and claims development tables (continued)
(i Sensitivity analysis to underwriting risk variables (continued)
2023
Impact on
Balances as at insurance Impact on
31 December contract profit before Impact on
2023 liahilities tax equity
HKD HKD HKD HKD
All lines
Insurance contract liabilities (3,605,231,431)
Reinsurance contract assets 2,385,043,132
Net insurance contract liabilities (1,220,188,289)
Unpaid claims and expenses —
5% increase
Insurance contract liabilities (184,641,442} (184,641,442) (184,641,442)
Reinsurance contract assets 121,674,023 121,674,023 121,674,023
Net insurance contract liabilities (62,967,419) (62,967,419) (62,967,419)
Unpaid claims and expenses —
5% decrease
Insurance contract liabilities 184,641,442 184,641,442 184,641,442
Reinsurance contract assets (121,674,023} (121,674,023) (121,674,023)
Net insurance contract liabilities 62,967 419 62,967,419 62,967,419
(i) Claims development tables

The tables below illustrate how estimates of cumulative claims for the Group have
been developed over time on a gross and net of reinsurance basis. Each table
shows how the Group’s estimates of total claims for each accident year have been
developed over time and reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount included
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Balances have been translated
at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.

The tables present the following:

- Undiscounted estimates of cash outflows for incurred claims and other
directly attributable expenses by accident year for each accident year from
2018, with comparisons to previous estimates of these undiscounted cash

outflows;

- The actual cash paymenis made for incurred claims and other directly
attributable expenses by accident year from 2018;

- Gross claims liabilities for accidents years prior to 2018;

- The effect of discounting and the risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

The Group provides information on the gross and net claims development for
the current reporting period and six years prior to it.
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14

15

Other payables

Other payables
Accruals

Current portion

Net insurance and investment result

Investment return

Interest revenue using the effective interest method
- Cash and bank balances

Expenses on funds withheld

Net investment income

Net insurance finance expenses from insurance

contracts issued

- Interest accreted

- Effect of changes in interest rates and other
financial assumptions

Insurance finance income from reinsurance

contracts held

- Effect of changes in interest rates and other
financial assumptions

Net insurance and investment result

2024 2023
HKD HKD
9,418,589 12,863,488
51,611,668 52,185,947
61,030,257 65,049,435
61,030,257 65,049,435
2024 2023
HKD HKD
112,048,809 115,267,776
(4,862,037)  (56,751,244)
107,186,772 58,516,532
(8,024,495) (9,745,543)
(98,554,066) (40,581,424)
(106,578,561) (50,326,967)
60,669,670 16,293,100
60,669,670 16,293,100
61,277,881 24,482 665

Expenses on funds withheld are determined with reference to HIBOR or SOFR based on

the balance of funds withheld at every quarter end.
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AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 Other income

2024 2023

HKD HKD

Other commission 12,783,212 5,246,982
Management fee income 2,145,420 2,362,566
Unclaimed balances writien back 62,049 102,577
Miscellaneous income 2,096,046 2,748,871
17,086,727 10,460,996

17 Expenses by nature

2024 2023

HKD HKD

Claims and loss adjustment expenses 547,028,565 635,638,736
Commissions 236,391,522 266,229,559
Auditor's remuneration 4,782,283 5,032,187
Data processing fees 23,071,818 37,140,957
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 5 and 7) 9,614,751 9,732,588
Depreciation on right-of-use asset (Note 6) 23,930,861 26,631,203
Directors' emoluments (Note 19) 6,651,639 15,334,461
Employee benefit expenses (Note 18) 154,820,323 140,901,765
Head office charges 70,311,307 58,383,143
Other premises expenses 8,968,390 8,986,627
Professional fees and expenses 14,188,804 2,293,196
Service fees 24,627,923 27,818,795
Other expenses 32,052,089 14,051,660

1,156,440,285 1,248,174,877
Amounts attributed to insurance acquisition cash flows
incurred during the year
Amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows

(333,029,322)  (337,128,600)
339,184,597 336,995,813

1,162,595,660 1,248,042,090

Represented by:
Insurance service expenses
Other operating expenses

1,009,005,005 1,091,865,907
153,580,555 156,176,183

1,162,595,560 1,248,042,090
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AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18

19

20

Employee benefit expenses

Wages and salaries

Share-based payment expenses
Retirement benefits
Post-retirement benefits (Note 22)
Other personnel costs

Total employee benefit expenses

Benefits and interests of directors

2024 2023

HKD HKD
131,855,192 118,087,053
1,610,258 1,283,344
9,202,497 8,681,915
4,928,784 5,011,224
7,223,592 7,838,229
154,820,323 140,901,765

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), which requires compliance with section 161 of the predecessor

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

Directors’ fee
Salaries
Retirement benefits
Other benefits

Income tax {expenses)/credits

2024 2023
HKD HKD
733,335 590,004
3,995,675 3,838,865
499,447 564,313
1,423,282 10,341,279
6,651,639 15,334,461

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a flat rate of 8.25% for qualifying insurance
business profit based on concessionary tax rate applicable to specified insurer and 16.50%

for non-qualifying insurance business profit.

Macau profits tax has been providéd at a statutory rate at 12.00% on the taxable income
above MOPS600,000. Effective tax rate for the period is 12.02% on the estimated

assessable profit for the year of 2024 (2023: 12.14%).

Current tax
- Hong Kong profits tax
- Macau profits tax

Deferred tax (Note 8)

Income tax expenses/(credits)
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2024 2023

HKD HKD
32,714,661 3,983,175
3,182,666 3,613,552
35,897,327 7,596,727
(3,920,682)  (7,766,151)
31,976,645 (169,424)




AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20

Income tax (expenses)/credits (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the entities as follows:

2024 2023
HKD HKD
Profit before tax 250,200,329 127,064,964
Tax calculated at a domestic tax rate applicable to
profits in the respective regions 38,137,180 15,937,053
Tax effect of:
Income not subject to tax (16,737,114)  (14,870,985)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 751,946 608,947
Under provision of current tax expenses in the prior
years 378,013 318,788
Others 9,446,620 (2,163,227)
Income tax expenses /(credits) 31,976,645 (169,424)

The Group is a member of a multinational Group that is within the scope of the
Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development Inclusive Framework on Base
Erosion and Profit Shifting Piflar Two Rules. The rules are aimed at ensuring that
multinational groups are subject to a minimum taxation of 15% in each of the jurisdictions
in which they operate.

The Group has applied the exemption to recognizing and disclosing information about
deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.
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i

—

AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21

22

Net cash flow generated from operating activities

2024 2023
HKD HKD
Profit before {ax 250,200,329 127,064,964
Adjustment for
- Depreciation and amortization 33,545,612 36,363,791
- Interest expenses on lease 735,954 1,592,056
- Bank interest income (112,048,809) (115,267,776)
- Expenses on funds withheld 4,862,037 56,751,244
- Share-based payment expenses (702,543) (1,218,966)
- Gain on early termination of lease - (73,929)
- Post-retirement benefit 3,944,890 4,651,601
- Net exchange differences (10,553) 27,538
180,527,017 109,890,523
Changes in working capital
- Decrease in prepayments and other receivables 919,610 11,057,396
- (Increase)/Decrease in intercompany balance
receivables (653,088) 4,054,816
- (Increase)/Decrease in reinsurance contract assets (548,163,670) 6,224,063
- Decrease in insurance contract liabilities (218,405,714} (753,446,330)
- (Decrease)/Increase in intercompany balance
payables (9,277,566) 1,417,572
- Decrease in other payables (4,019,178)  (39,696,740)
Cash flow used in operations (599,072,589} (660,498,700)

Income tax paid

Net cash flow used in operating activities

Post-retirement obligation

(6,550,488}

(10,893,187)

(605,623,077)

(671,391,887)

The Group provides post-retirement medical care and life insurance benefits to the
retirees. Active employees are eligible for retirement at age 65 or after age 55 and the
completion of 15 years of service. The post-retirement benefit plan was closed to new
entrants with effect from 1 April 2010.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of
post-retirement obligations is the present value of the post-retirement benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The post-retirement benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the post-retirement benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-retirement benefit liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise. They will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Separately segregated plan assets are not held for the post-retirement obligation and
therefore the obligation is deemed “unfunded” in accordance with HKAS 19.
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22

Post-retirement obligation (continued)

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Current service costs
Interest on obligation

Total included in employee benefit expenses

Change in present value of the unfunded benefit
obligation are as follows;

Benefit obligation as at 1 January

Current service costs

Interest cost

Direct benefit payments

Actuarial gains from changes in demographic
assumptions

Actuarial gains/{losses) from changes in financial
assumptions

Actuarial gains from experience adjustments

Closing benefit obligation as at 31 December

Accumulated confributions in excess of net periodic

benefit cost
Amount as at beginning of year
Net periodic benefit cost for the year
Benefits paid directly by the Group for the year

Amount as at end of year

Reconciliation of actuarial qains/(losses

Amount as at beginning of year
Liability experience

Amount as at end of year

-B6 -

2024 2023

HKD HKD
1,723,086 1,696,086
3,205,698 3,315,138
4,928,784 5,011,224
86,172,857 84,005,811
1,723,086 1,696,086
3,205,698 3,315,138
(983,794) (359,623)
- (1,825,232}
(6,639,217) 4,659,774
(11,642,706) (5,319,097)
71,835,924 86,172,857

(85,820,716)

(81,169,115)

(4,028,784)  (5,011,224)
983,794 350,623
(89,765,708)  (85,820,716)
(352,141)  (2,836,696)
18,281,923 2,484,555
17,929,782 (352,141)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22

Post-retirement obligation (continued)

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the post-retirement benefits for the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase
Assumed health care trend rate
- Immediate and ultimate trend rate
Year that the rate reaches ultimate trend rate

Mortality rates used in assumptions:
Age
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90
100

Sensitivity to trend rate and discount rate assumptions:

1% increase in trend rate

- Effect on total current service cost and interest rate
components

- Effect on benefit obligation

1% decrease in trend rate

- Effect on total current service cost and interest rate
components

- Effect on benefit obligation

1% increase in discount rate
- Effect on total current service cost and interest rate
components

- Effect on benefit obligation

1% decrease in discount rafe
- Effect on total current service cost and interest rate
components

- Effect on benefit obligation

The sensitivity to rate of compensation and mortality rates are immaterial.

Maturity profile:

2024
4.10%
3.50%

8.00%
2025

Male
0.0003%
0.0005%
0.0010%
0.0028%
0.0066%
0.0166%
0.0520%
0.1225%

100.0000%

2024
HKD

642,049
14,618,585

(483,737)
(11,277,759)

(549,031)
(13,190,084)

744,842
17,422,796

2023
3.75%
3.50%

8.00%
2024

Female
0.0002%
0.0002%
0.0005%
0.0015%
0.0033%
0.0070%
0.0279%
0.0877%

100.0000%

2023
HKD

705,983
18,297,595

(522,377)
(14,015,106)

(617,888)
(16,889,769)

860,916
22 670,584

The annual post-retirement benefit payout is estimated to be HKDO0.5 million approximately
per year within the next 1-5 years and the remaining will be paid over 5 years.
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23 Related-party transactions

The Company is controlled by AIG Asia Pacific Insurance Pte. Ltd, which owns 100% of
the Company’s shares. The directors regard AIG, a company incorporated in the United
States of America, as being the ultimate parent company.

course of business with group companies:

Assets management fee paid to a fellow
subsidiary

Claims paid to fellow subsidiaries

Claims recovered on reinsurance ceded to
fellow subsidiaries

Commission paid to fellow subsidiaries

Commission received on reinsurance ceded
to fellow subsidiaries

Data processing, IT infrastructure and
system support charges paid to fellow
subsidiaries

Management fee income from a fellow
subsidiary

Premium paid on reinsurance ceded to
fellow subsidiaries

Premium received from fellow subsidiaries
Expenses on funds withheld paid to a fellow
subsidiary

Service claims fee income from fellow
subsidiaries

Service claims fee income from a joint
venture

Service claim fees income from an
intermediate holding company

Service fees to intermediate holding
companies

Service fees to fellow subsidiaries

Home office recharges to intermediate
holding companies

-68 -

2024
HKD

(73,245)
4,637,229

446,665,206

341,087,757

16,423,639
2,145,420

1,050,495,869

4,862,037

83,006

1,958

27,446,777

70,311,307

a During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions in the normal

2023
HKD

2,865,973
2,908,355

679,807,499
21,959

374,465,395

20,212,891
2,362,566

1,116,718,844
21,661,373

56,751,244
135,848
9,249

2,013,159
32,051,467

58,383,143




AlG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
23 Related-party transactions (continued}

a During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions in the normal
course of business with group companies: {continued)

Reinsurance arrangements

A summary of the material reinsurance arrangements effected by the Group is as

— ]

S — [N oy e —— —

follows:

Business class

Treaty types

Reinsurers (fellow

subsidiaries)

(A) Construction All Risk  Proportional Reinsurance American Home
("CAR") and Erection  Quota share at 75% Assurance Company
All Risks ("EAR") cession (Before 1 March  New Hampshire
2024: 70%) Insurance Company
National Union Fire
Insurance Company
of Pittsburgh, Pa.
(B) Trade Credit, Mergers  Proportional Reinsurance As above
and Acquisitions Quota share at 70%
(“M&A”"), Cyber and cession
Political Risk (except
AlG Lender Policies
business)
(C) Poliical Risk — AIG Proportional Reinsurance As above
Lender Policies Quota share at 75%
business cession
(D) Personal Lines Travel Proportional Reinsurance As above
Insurance Quota share at 90%
cession (Before 2
December 2024: 55%)
(E) All classes (except Proportional Reinsurance As above
Trade Credit, M&A,  Quota share at 55%
Cyber, Political Risk, cession
CAR/EAR, Personal
Lines Travel
Insurance and
Aviation)
(F) All classes (except Accident Year Stop Loss  As above

Aviation)

Aviation

Quota share

-69 -
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AlIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Related-party transactions (continued)

a

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions in the normal
course of business with group companies: (continued)

As of 1 January 2024, under the Quota Share reinsurance arrangement, all classes
(except CAR/EAR, Trade Credit, M&A, Cyber, Political Risk, Personal Lines Travel
Insurance and Aviation for the entire period) cede 55% of the first USD400 miilion
of each risk, and 100% of any risk in excess of USD400 million; CAR/EAR business
cedes 70% of any risk, which is updated to 75% effective from 1 March 2024, Trade
Credit, M&A, Cyber and Political Risk (except AiG Lender Policies business) cede
70% of the first USD400 million of each risk, and 100% of any risk in excess of
USD400 million; Political Risk — AlG Lender Policies business cedes 75% of the
first USD400 million of each risk, and 100% of any risk in excess of USD400 million;
and Personal Lines Travel Insurance cedes 55% of any risk, which is updated to
90% effective from 2 December 2024. The treaty limit is USD1 billion effective since
1 December 2019.

With regard to the Accident Year Stop-Loss reinsurance arrangement, the
attachment point is 60.9% and the limit is HKD3.5 billion.

The Group had the following non-insurance balances with related parties in the
normal course of its business due at the year-end:

2024 2023
HKD HKD

Intercompany balance receivables 14,122,216 13,469,128
Intercompany balance payables (14,978,096) (36,482,733)

Net intercompany balance payables (855,880) (23,013,605)

Current portion (855,880) (23,013,605)

These balances are unsecured, interest free and due upon receipts of invoices.
Key management compensation

2024 2023
HKD HKD

Directors’ emoiuments (Note 19) 6,651,639 15,334,461
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24

Share-based compensation plans

The Group’s employees have participated in share-based compensation arrangements of
Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP").

The LTIP provides for an annual award fo certain employees, including our senior
executive officers and other highly compensated employees that may be comprised of
performance share units (“PSUs") and/or restricted stock units (*RSUs”).

The number of PSUs issued on the grant date (the “target”) provides the opportunity for
the LTIP participant to receive shares of AIG common stock based on AIG achieving
specified performance goals at the end of a three-year performance period. These
performance goals are pre-established by AlG’s Compensation and Management
Resources Committee for each annual grant and may differ from year to year. The actual
number of PSUs earned can vary from zero to 200 percent of the target for the years 2024,
2023 and 2022 awards, depending on AIG’s performance relative to a specified peer group
or against pre-established financial goals, as applicable.

RSUs are earned based solely on continued service by the participant.

Vesting for RSUs awarded occurs in three equal installments on the first, second and third
anniversary of the grant date. Recipients must be employed at each vesting date to be
entitled to share delivery, except upon the occurrence of an accelerated vesting event,
such as an involuntary termination without cause, disability, retirement eligibility or death
during the vesting period. However, for involuntarily terminated employees hired after 1
April 2022 unvested RSUs are forfeited on the termination date, while PSUs are pro-rated
based on the number of completed years in the performance period.

Valuation methodology

The fair value of time-vesting RSUs as well as PSUs that are earned based on certain
company-specific metrics was based on the closing price of AIG common stock on the
grant date; while the fair value of PSUs that are earned based on AlG’s relative total
shareholder return ("TSR") was determined on the grant date using a Monte Carlo
simulation.

The total recognized compensation cost (net of expected forfeitures) related to unvested

PSUs are USD228,339 (equivalent to HKD1,773,783) (2023: USD318,494 (equivalent to
HKD2,487,069)).
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25

26

Immediate and ultimate holding company

During the year and as at the reporting date, the directors consider that the immediate
holding company is AIG Asia Pacific Insurance Pte. Ltd, a company incorporated in

Singapore and the ultimate holding company is AlG, a company incorporated in the United
States of America.

Dividends
2024 2023
HKD HKD
Interim dividend declared and paid of HKD5.83 per
share (2023; nil) 86,000,000 -
Final dividend recommended of HKD27.12 per
share (2023: nil) but not been recognized as a
liability at the reporting date 400,000,000 -

Dividends to shareholders of the Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

2024 2023
HKD HKD
No final dividend in respect of the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year (2023:
HKD5.70 per share) - 84,000,000
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27

Company’s statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s statement of financial position and statement of

changes in equity are as follows.

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investment in a subsidiary

Club debentures

Reinsurance contract assets
Current income tax asset
Intercompany balance receivables
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the
Company’s equity holders

Share capital

Other reserves

Reserve on post-retirement obligation
Retained earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities
Post-retirement obligation
Lease liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities
Current income tax liabilities
Intercompany balance payables
Other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

27a

2024
HKD

3,670,933
14,316,120
9,943,403

1

25,959,000
2,149,507,693

14,122,216
25,002,465
3,730,776,744

2023
HKD

9,909,628
38,246,981
11,001,324

1
28,917,000
1,601,344,023

5,156,755
13,469,128
25,922,075

4,356,719,631

5,973,298,575

6,090,686,546

1,246,318,848

1,246,318,848

14,978,783 18,650,069
15,784,568 228,694
796,142,435 663,918,751
2,073,224,634 1,929,116,362
98,831 1,293,464
71,835,924 86,172,857
13,918,855 40,144,277
3,710,425,030  3,928,830,744
27,786,947 3,596,673
14,978,097 36,482,734
61,030,257 65,049,435

3,900,073,941

4,161,570,184

5,973,298,575

6,090,686,546

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors

on 25 April 2025 and was signed on the Company’s behalf.

SZE Lai Kue
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AIG INSURANCE HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company’s statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
(continued)

a Investment in a subsidiary

The Company held 100% of the 1 issued ordinary share of HKD1 in American
International Underwriters Limited.

American International Underwriters Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong and
was dormant as of 31 December 2024

Approval of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financiai statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 April
2025,
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